MITCHELL PARK

In 1889, the State Legislature passed a bill which authorized the City of Milwaukee to establish a public park system and provided for the organization of a Board of Park Commissioners.  The first acquisition of park lands occurred in 1890 and included five sites.  Among these initial acquisitions was 24-1/2 acres purchased from John L. Mitchell.  Thus, the genesis of Mitchell Park took place.  Today the park contains approximately 61 acres.

Mitchell Park was the first site officially named by the Park Board.  Its name honors John Landrum Mitchell, a wealthy and highly respected citizen of Milwaukee who in addition to the land he sold to the city, donated a valuable 5 acre tract for the park.  His public service included being a State Senator 1872-73, President of the Milwaukee School Board 1875-76 and a term as a United States Senator 1893-1899.  His Son, General “Billy” Mitchell, is the namesake of Milwaukee’s Mitchell International Airport..

The first annual report of the City Park Commission referred to Mitchell Park as “the gem of south side parks.”  Due to its central location and interesting topography, the Commission devoted its first efforts of park development to this site.

Early improvements included a main entrance drive off of Pierce Street with a circle at its terminus and a rustic stone fountain within the circle.  The fountain overflowed into a brook which emptied into a small lake which was used for boating in the summer and skating in winter.  Additionally, a pavilion and small boathouse were built on the shores of the lake, walks were constructed and a significant amount of landscaping was completed.

The original Conservatory was constructed in 1898 along with greenhouses for plant propagation.  The propagation center not only provided plants for the Conservatory, but also for other parks and boulevards throughout the city.  With construction of the Sunken Garden in 1904, Mitchell Park was able to provide horticultural interest and beauty the year around.  By 1905, Mitchell Park had gained the reputation as the “flower park” of Milwaukee.  At that point in time it contained more flowers than all the other parks combined.  

In 1910 a replica of the cabin which had belonged to Jacques Vieau was built in the northern portion of the park.  The original structure constructed in 1795 is thought to be the first home built by a settler in Milwaukee.  Vieau had been a fur trader and was the father-in-law of Milwaukee’s first mayor Solomon Juneau.  The cabin had been located at the intersection of trails leading to Chicago and Green Bay.  A plaque mounted on a large boulder stands at the site of the replica cabin which was destroyed by fire many years ago.

In conjunction with the consolidation of parks in 1937, Mitchell Park was transferred from the City to Milwaukee County.

Numerous improvements have occurred over the years, however, the most significant took place in 1955 when the original Conservatory which had become inadequate to serve the population of the county was razed and planning for a new innovative facility commenced.  Thirty-three architects were interviewed and ultimately, Donald L. Grieb was commissioned for the challenging assignment of designing the new facility.  

The Show Dome opened in 1964 and the former first lady, Mrs. Lyndon B. Johnson, formally dedicated the new Conservatory in September of 1965.  

Due to budget constraints the sunken garden was removed in 1994, however, the park continues to provide a multitude of active and passive recreational opportunities to the community.  In addition to the Conservatory, the park is a popular location for picnics, various neighborhood functions and a variety of athletic activities.

Today (12/12/00), the Parks Department will be presenting the Parks, Energy and Environment Committee a new master plan for Mitchell Park which, if implemented, will allow it to better serve the citizenry of Milwaukee County.
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